
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee East 
Wednesday, 19th December, 2012 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee East, which will 
be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 19th December, 2012 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564607 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors A Boyce (Chairman), Mrs S Jones (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, Mrs H Brady, 
W Breare-Hall, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, P Keska, Mrs M McEwen, 
R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 19 December 2012 
 

2 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 22) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on 28 

November 2012 (attached). 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 23 - 90) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 19 December 2012 
 

3 

as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers: 
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning & Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of the Sub-Committee could be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or on the Planning & Economic Development Information Desk at the 
Civic Offices in Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 19 December 2012 
 

4 

Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2012-13 
Members of the Committee: 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  

Cllr Boyce 

Cllr Waller 

Cllr Brady Cllr Breare-
Hall 

Cllr Gode Cllr Grigg Cllr Jacobs Cllr Jones 

Cllr 
McEwen 

Cllr Morgan Cllr Philip Cllr Rolfe Cllr Stallan 

Cllr 
Whitbread 

Cllr Janet 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Jon 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Avey 

Cllr Keska 

Cllr Church 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 28 November 2012  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 9.30 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

A Boyce (Chairman), Mrs S Jones (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, Mrs H Brady, 
T Church, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, P Keska, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, 
J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: W Breare-Hall, P Gode and C Whitbread 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), C Neilan (Landscape Officer & 
Arboriculturist), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and J Leither 
(Democratic Services Assistant) 
 

  
 

47. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

48. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2012 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
49. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor M McEwen 
declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
living in the vicinity of the application site and knowledge of the people concerned. 
 
EPF/1714/12 – Orchard Villa, Norton Heath, High Ongar. 
 
 

50. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee East  28 November 2012 

2 

 
51. TPO/EPF/04/12 - REAR OF 51 HORNBEAM ROAD, THEYDON BOIS  

 
The Subcommittee considered the confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 
at 51 Hornbeam Road, Theydon Bois. The emergency TPO had been made to 
protect an important oak tree, at the request of the Parish Council, at risk of imminent 
felling. The subcommittee noted that subsequent to the serving of the TPO on the 
same day, the tree had been ‘ring-barked’ by the tree surgeon concerned and this 
matter was now to be subject to legal action by way of summons to the magistrates 
court. 
 
The Subcommittee noted that an objection had been made to confirmation of the 
order and officer advice on these objections, the advice about the likelihood of the 
tree surviving its deliberate damaging and the position for replacement should the 
tree eventually die. The Subcommittee concurred with the view of the officers that the 
TPO should be confirmed. 
 
 Resolved: 
 

That Tree Preservation Order TPO/EPF/04/12 be confirmed without 
modification. 

 
52. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the planning applications numbered 1 – 9 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes. 

 
53. PROBITY IN PLANNING  

 
The Subcommittee received a report on the results of planning appeals made during 
the period 1 April 2012 to 30 September 2012. Members commented that where the 
application had been refused contrary to officer recommendation that it was 
appropriate that members be involved in the formulation of the case at any 
subsequent appeal and that they were made aware of any deadline for the 
submission of written representations. 
 
Councillor Philip also commended officers for enforcement action taken at the Old 
Foresters site in Theydon Bois. 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 

 
54. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0834/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: New House Farm  

Vicarage Lane  
North Weald  
Essex 
CM16 6AP 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of 50kW microgeneration wind turbine with a tower 
height of 25m and blade diameter of 19m. 
 

DECISION: To Agree that had an appeal against the Council’s failure to 
determine the application not been lodged the council would 
have refused the application for the following reasons. 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=537159 
 
 
 
Members determined that had an appeal against the Council’s failure to determine the application 
not been lodged, the Council would have refused the application for the following reason:- 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed wind turbine constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt, 
by definition harmful and in addition, the structure will have an adverse impact on 
the character and amenity of the area.  It is not accepted that there are very special 
circumstances sufficient to outweigh this harm and the proposal is therefore contrary 
to the National Planning Policy Framework and policies GB2A, GB7A, LL1 and LL2 
of the adopted Local Plan. 
 

 
Members were mindful that this site was subject to an appeal and asked that should an inspector 
grant the application at appeal it should be a condition that the wind turbine be externally finished 
in a dark colour. 

Minute Item 52

Page 3Page 11



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0827/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to rear of Harness Cottage  

Lower Bury Lane 
Epping  
Essex 
CM16 5HA 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of new detached house on land to rear of Harness 
Cottage, including existing house to be used as ancillary 
accommodation. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=537123 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening at first floor within both flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured 
glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in 
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 Before any preparatory demolition or construction works commence on site, full 
ecological surveys and a mitigation strategy for the site shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for agreement in writing with a working methodology for site 
clearance and construction work to minimise impact on any protected species and 
nesting birds. Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed 
strategy and methodology. 
 

6 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the driveway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The agreed surfacing shall be made of porous materials and retained 

Page 4Page 12



thereafter or provision shall be made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water 
from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the curtilage 
of the property. The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the first 
occupation of the development or within 1 year of the substantial completion of the 
development hereby approved, whichever occurs first. 
 

7 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

9 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

10 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 

Page 5Page 13



intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

11 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  
 

12 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

13 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

15 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

16 In accordance with the submitted application, on completion of the new dwelling the 
dwelling known as Harness Cottage, shall only be occupied as ancillary to the new 
house and shall not be occupied as a separate independent dwelling. 
 

17 Not withstanding the details submitted with the application no development shall 
take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and 
other natural features and including the proposed times of proposed planting (linked 
to the development schedule), have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and at those times. 
 

Page 6Page 14



 
18 Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application no development, including 

site clearance, shall take place until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method 
Statement and site monitoring schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in 
relation to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations) has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development 
shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved documents unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

19 The development hereby permitted will be completed in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:EJQ_1000, EJQ_1020 RevC (Plans and Elevations) and the 
siting and layout shall be in accordance with that shown on EJQ_1011Rev.A.  
Please note that the tree protection and tree removal shown on EJQ_1011 Rev A is 
not agreed and further details are required by condition.  
 

 

Page 7Page 15



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1711/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 9 Marconi Bungalows 

High Road 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6EQ 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of land to garden area. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=541035 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 871.DWG 
 

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class E and F shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

Page 8Page 16



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1629/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 8 Marconi Bungalows  

Epping Road 
North Weald  
Essex 
CM16 6EQ 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of land to garden area. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=540547 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Ordnance Survey location plan Title Number EX706066 
 

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class E and F shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

Page 9Page 17



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1630/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 7 Marconi Bungalows  

Epping Road 
North Weald  
Essex 
CM16 6EQ 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of land to garden area. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=540548 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Ordnance Survey location plan Title Number EX703481 
 

2 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class E and F shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

Page 10Page 18



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1637/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Red Oaks Mead 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7LA 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey front side and rear extension and replacement of 
ground floor lounge window. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=540604 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 The existing hedge along the part of the front boundary, and along the front part of 
the side boundary with Red Oaks Mead, together with the hedge dividing the front 
gardens of numbers 6 and 5 Red Oaks Mead, shall be retained on a permanent 
basis, or replaced with a similar hedge if part or all of these hedges require 
replacement. 
 

 
 

Page 11Page 19



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1674/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 8 Vicarage Road 

Coopersale 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7RB 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed two storey side extension and part two storey rear 
extension, single storey side extension and front porch and 
garage extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=540823 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening in the first floor flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
 

Page 12Page 20



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1714/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Orchard Villa 

Norton Heath 
High Ongar 
Ingatestone 
Essex 
CM4 0LQ 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey summer house and deck (revised application to 
incorporate pitched roof and alterations to elevations). 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=541069 
 
Members determined to defer this item to allow a site visit to take place. 

Page 13Page 21



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1861/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 45 Hampden Close 

North Weald  
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6JX 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Convert existing carport to garage and extend by 1.0m. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=541891 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained 
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose. 
 

 

Page 14Page 22



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 

Date 19 December 2012 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/1871/12 89 Theydon Grove, Epping, 
Essex CM16 4PZ 

Refuse Permission 25 

2 EPF/2083/12 44 Ladywell Prospect, Sheering, 
Harlow, Essex CM21 9PT 

Refuse Permission 29 

3 EPF/2176/12 65 Hemnall Street, Epping, 
Essex CM16 4LZ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

33 

4 EPF/2255/12 51 Hornbeam Road, Theydon 
Bois, Epping, Essex CM16 7JU 

Refuse Permission 
 

37 

5 EPF/2261/12 Inverellen, 62 Hoe Lane, 
Lambourne, Romford, Essex 
RM4 1AU 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

41 

6 EPF/2513/11 Mulberry House, Chelmsford 
Road, High Ongar, Essex CM5 
9NL 

Grant Permission 
(Subject to Legal 
Agreement) 

44 

7 EPF/1245/12 1 Ivy Cottage Mews, Theydon 
Park Road, Theydon Bois, 
Epping, Essex CM16 7LW 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

55 

8 EPF/1395/12 Rear of Woodside Camp Site, 
Weald Place Farm, 9 Duck Lane, 
North Weald Bassett, Epping, 
Essex 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

59 

9 EPF/1433/12 Land adj to Central House, High 
Street, Ongar, Essex CM5 6AA 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

64 

10 EPF/1434/12 Land adj to Central House, High 
Street, Ongar, Essex CM5 6AA 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

70 

11 EPF/1714/12 Orchard Villa, Norton Heath, 
High Ongar, Ingatestone, Essex 
CM4 0LQ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

73 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



12 EPF/1095/12 63 Weald Bridge Road, North 
Weald, Essex CM16 6ES 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

78 

13 EPF/1924/12 261 High Street, Epping, Essex 
CM16 4BT 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

82 

14 EPF/1938/12 261 High Street, Epping, Essex 
CM16 4BT 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

88 

 

Page 24



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1871/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 89 Theydon Grove 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4PZ 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Nicholas Conlan 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/16/01 
T1 - Mulberry - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=541932 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Although it is recognised that the mulberry's fruit causes a range of seasonal 
problems this is not sufficient to justify the loss of its visual and other amenity.   The 
loss of the tree's existing and potential amenity is therefore contrary to policy LL9 of 
the Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.. 

 
 
This application is before this committee as any application to fell a preserved tree falls outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Site 
 
A medium sized tree in the open front garden of a detached property in a prominent location 
immediately adjacent to the street.   
 
Description of Proposal 
 
Fell mulberry and replace with fastigiate (upright) hornbeam. 
 
Relevant History 
 
TRE/EPF/1191/08; minor pruning; app/con 06/08/2008 
 
Relevant Policies 
 
LL9 felling of preserved trees:  the Council will not give consent to fell a tree… protected by TPO 
unless it is satisfied that this is necessary and justified…any such consent will be conditional upon 
the appropriate replacement of the tree. 

Page 25



 
Summary of Representations 
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: no objections subject to all work being carried out under supervision.   
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The reasons given for the application centre on the quantity of fruit now produced by the tree.  The 
applicant contends that taken together these constitute an unreasonable infringement on his 
family’s rights to reasonable enjoyment of the property.  In particular  
 

• The fruit has stained the new driveway;  
• It has caused issues with the paintwork on both cars; 
• It is picked up on shoes and so damages carpets and floors and makes a mess of the 
family’s shoes. 

• The owner states that he has also been approached by passers by who say that the 
pavement is slippery because of the amount of fruit.   

• It attracts flies; the number of these was such that the couple’s baby daughter could not be 
taken out in a pram because of them. 

• Managing the berries is a constant problem for a lengthy period involving a jet wash and a 
stiff broom.  The period is lengthy because the fruit ripens and falls over a long period.  

•  
The applicant has stated that he is willing to plant a replacement tree, such as the fastigiate 
hornbeam.   
 
Discussion  
 
This is now a medium sized tree capable of being retained on the site with occasional pruning, as 
per the previous consent in 2008. The species, black mulberry, is noted for its fruit which is 
normally considered a delicacy.  However, as reported, it is produced over a period and in some 
quantity.  It is a small, sweet, squashy fruit, somewhat like a large blackberry.  There is no dispute 
that a range of problems, as described, will be experienced in late summer over several weeks.   
 
In terms of its merits, the tree is important visually.  It is located on the junction of the main access 
to Theydon Grove from Bower Hill and visually forms part of a group with trees on the green 
opposite.   
 
Characteristically the black mulberry is a short but spreading tree with an attractive, architectural 
shape and large, heart shaped leaves, as well as the fruit later in summer.  The flowers are not 
particularly noticeable.  Mulberries are long lived trees, generally prized for their visual appeal and 
longevity.  This specimen is probably a remnant of the original garden of Theydon Grove.  It is 
approx 7m in height; the crown’s radial spread has been restricted by pruning to from 3 to 5m.  
The trunk is ivy covered, which spoils the winter appearance, but is good for wildlife. The front 
garden is some 6m deep; the tree is set close to the footpath.    The original drive is immediately to 
the north, while 2 additional car parking spaces have recently been created on what was 
previously lawn to the south.  The crown reaches close to the front elevation of the house, and 
substantially overhangs the footpath, and both the original and new hardstandings.   
 
To some extent the problems might be limited by pruning, although not significantly reduced or 
eliminated.  There is no realistic possibility of a significant reduction of the tree’s spread without 
ruining it as a specimen.  Cars could however be parked elsewhere or covered for the critical 
period.   A species of replacements could be chosen that would not cause such problems, but the 
particular landscape qualities of the mulberry would be lost.  The offered alternative, the upright 
hornbeam, is ultimately a very large tree, and might cause other problems in the longer term.   

Page 26



Conclusion 
 
Although the difficulties caused by the seasonal fruiting are recognised nevertheless its 
importance as a wider public amenity should take precedence.  The application is therefore 
recommended for refusal in accordance with policy LL9, Epping Forest District Local Plan and 
Alterations 2006. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 27



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

War d B dy

War d B dy

79

E l  S u b  S t a
40

38

8 9

87

69

28

14

1 0 9

60

9 7

57

47

20

3 2

48

4 6

151

1 2 1

72

159

4 6

69

E l  S u b  S t a
40

38

8 9

87

79

48

28

14

9 7

159

60

57

47

20

3 2

151

1 2 1

1 0 9

72

T H E Y D O N  G R O V E

T H
E Y

D
O
N

G R O V E

T H E Y D O N  G R O V E

T H
E Y

D
O
N

G R O V E

Car Park

Playground

Car Park

Playground

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/1871/12 
Site Name: 89 Theydon Grove, Epping 

CM16 4PZ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 28



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2083/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 44 Ladywell Prospect 

Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM21 9PT 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

APPLICANT: The Owner/Occupier 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/07/06 
T1 - Birch - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542877 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Insufficient details have been provided to allow a proper examination of the likely 
impact of continued retention of the tree on the property.  The loss of the tree's 
existing and potential visual amenity is therefore contrary to policy LL9 of the 
Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.. 

 
 
This application is before this Committee because any application to fell preserved trees falls 
outside the scope of delegated powers 
 
Description of Site: 
 
This tree is a maturing, 10 metre tall, specimen, standing around 8 metres from the front elevation 
of this semidetached house. It has been planted at the front corner of the applicant’s front garden 
space and the footpaths to both 42 and 44 run under its canopy. The house is located within a 
large, modern residential estate. There are numerous publicly owned trees throughout the 
development but this particular part of the road benefits from this tree as the most prominent and 
attractive landscape feature at the crest of a bend in the cul-de-sac. This important tree softens 
and brightens the built environment of house fronts and largely hard surfaced driveways and lay-
bys at this point in the road.  
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
T1. Birch - Fell to ground level 
 

Page 29



Relevant History: 
 
TPO/07/06 was served on this tree following an enquiry made to fell it. No reasons were given at 
that time for wanting it removed other than it was too close to the house. No pruning applications 
have been received or granted since the Order was made.  
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL9 Felling of preserved trees. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
6 neighbours were consulted but no responses have been received at the time of writing this 
report. 
 
SHEERING PARISH COUNCIL had not made any comments at the time of writing this report but 
any subsequent remarks will be reported verbally at committee. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Issues 
 
The reasons given for this application are made as follows: 
 
i) The house has recently been sold and the new owner had a survey conducted on the 

property, which has identified the tree as a potential problem to the fabric of the house.  
ii) The tree surgeon agent asserts that the tree has been planted too close to the house 

and is not suitable for a substantial reduction now it is mature. 
 
Consideration of the reasons given 
 
i) The tree as a potential problem to the fabric of the building  
 
The applicant’s survey has not been supplied as supporting evidence and no factual details are 
available to consider. The potential for harm is present by its very presence but most likely to 
occur initially to the footpaths running under its canopy. No mention of this damage has been 
submitted. Birch are not known for causing structural damage and no information on fabric 
damage has been made available. Without facts to support the allegation of potential harm little 
weight can be given to this statement.   

 
ii) Visual importance and suitability of location 
 
In the immediate locality it is an eye catching visual asset in landscape terms to many local 
residents, thanks to its position and size at this point of the road. Its removal would be significantly 
detrimental to the local street landscape.  
 
The tree has been planted at approximately 8 metres from the house; the furthest point within its 
curtilage. It is contested that the tree is too close to the house and is not suitable for some 
appropriate and sensitive pruning management. 
 
Further considerations and observations 
 
i) Tree structure, condition and pruning options 
 

Page 30



The tree has a full crown form, with normal levels of leaf and shoot vigour.  Structurally, a number 
of lower branches have crossed over each other and give a congested appearance to the lower 
crown. These might be carefully pruned to solve this problem and selected outer boughs might be 
trimmed back to lift the crown and maintain the maximum separation between the tree and the 
house front.  
 
ii) Future amenity contribution 
 
This good specimen can be expected to thrive for at least the next 20 years, based on its current 
health and development.  
 
Conclusion 

 
T1 does dominate the corner of this property and commands a strong visual presence from a wide 
number of aspects in this residential vicinity. The loss of amenity its removal will cause is so high 
that the proposal lacks justification. It is, therefore, recommended to refuse permission to this 
application on the grounds that the reasons given for the felling fail to justify the need for the tree’s 
removal. The proposal is contrary to Local Plan Landscape Policy LL9  
 
   
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Robin Hellier 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564546 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

19

37

51

3 5

2 1

67 69

1 1

73

87

89

53

5

65 71

63

9

7

1 2
1 0

2

3

1 4
1 6

8

2 6

1 8

115

105

107

4 8

111
113

4 6
4 4

2 8

109

4 2

131

125

143

1

2c2a

3

9 4
 t o

8 8
 t o

127

9 2

129

1 0
0

1

5 0
 t o

 5
4

3 1

5

6 4
 t o

 7
0

7 2
8 0

t o

t o
 7

8

6 2

5 6

9 6t o

19

32

18

22 to 31

3 4
33

21

2

17

1 3

14

1 5

1 1

8
1 6

1 2

1  to  6

1 2

9

3 2

1 4

2 4

Hanover Court

1 to 9

3 6

21

29

23

S U
N

 S
T R

E E
T

MO O R LA N D S  R E A C H

L A
D Y

W
E L

L  
P R

O
S P

E C
T

El Sub Sta
Recreation Ground

Playground

El Sub Sta

GP

Gardens
HazelEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/2083/12 
Site Name: 44 Ladywell Prospect, Sheering 

CM21 9PT 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 32



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2176/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 65 Hemnall Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4LZ 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Ian White 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/32/08 
T6 - Cherry Plum - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=543237 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted prior to the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 
 
This application is before committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
This tree stands around 8 metres tall with a previously pollarded crown of now densely grown new 
shoots. It features as a subordinate landscape feature in the general street scene, set behind 
larger street trees and from out of a boundary hedge. It has grown close to the boundary in front of 
the applicant’s and neighbour’s garage.  
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
T1. Cherry Plum - Fell to ground level. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
In recent years, the pruning of this plum tree is listed, as follows. 
TRE/EPF/0057/06 granted a 30% crown reduction. 

Page 33



TRE/ EPF/0400/02 granted permission to pollard the tree. 
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL9 The Council will not give consent to fell a tree preserved tree unless it is satisfied that this is 
necessary and justified; any tree lost must be replaced. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
2 neighbours were consulted and a supportive response was returned and summarised, as 
follows: 
 
67 HEMNALL STREET: ‘We are very much in favour of the felling of this tree, which is very close 
to the boundary of our property, blocks gutters, and down pipe causing flooding. Roots have grown 
into our drain.’ 

 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL were willing to waive their objection should the council officer conclude 
that the felling is justified and necessary. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Issues 
 
The applicant asserts that the tree has damaged the drain and caused cracks in the driveway. The 
drain damage has resulted in flooding to the garage, which contains the boiler and electrical 
appliances. There is the possibility of structural damage to the foundations to applicant’s and 
neighbour’s property from roots. Roots have been felt in the soakaway. Leaves obstruct gutters 
and downpipes to the applicant’s house and that of his neighbour.  
 
Consideration of applicant’s reasons: 
 
i) Drain damage 
 
A photo shows a heavy downpour flooding around the garage door. A photo of a boiler shows an 
appliance in the garage but does not clearly demonstrate that the drain is compromised by roots, 
leading to flooding and associated problems and concerns.  
 
ii) Structural damage 
 
No evidence has been supplied to show this and while the possibility remains it is not proven that 
the buildings will suffer damage to their footings. 
 
The cracks on the drive might have arisen from building works to drains and the processes of 
ageing and wear and tear, though the proximity of surface roots does, in some cases, correspond 
to root patterns and their effect on a thin tarmac surface.  
A repair might be achieved to the surface as might the clearing and sleeving of the damaged 
drains, without recourse to felling the tree. 
  
iii) Leaf litter 
 
The tree does overhang the garages of both properties and leaf debris might build up and result in 
overflow onto the drive but this alone does not justify the removal of an attractively coloured tree.  
 

Page 34



Planning considerations 
 
i) Tree condition.  
 
The tree is vigorous but has been reduced to such an extent that the truncated structure 
established in 2002 requires regular pruning to control the profusion of new shoots. The 2007 
reduction has not reduced the density of new top growth and the tree is susceptible to decay at 
these wounds, which may foreshorten the tree’s life expectancy to less than 20 years. There is 
also evidence of damage to the base of the stem, which has exposed sapwood under the bark 
layer that has been hacked away. This offers further opportunities to decay organisms to 
foreshorten the tree’s life. 
 
ii) Public amenity  
 
The tree is moderately prominent in the local landscape of this leafy residential road but its intrinsic 
beauty is overshadowed by the dominant street trees. Its public amenity would be rated at 
moderate due to this treatment. 
 
iii) Suitability of location and pruning alternatives. 
 
The proximity of the tree at less than 3 metres from the applicant’s house and the neighbour’s 
garage is an issue, as is the location of the drain directly beneath it. Evidence of root ingress into 
the drain has been reported but not supported by any images or professional reports. Pruning 
alternatives have been undertaken over the last decade but the visual result is not ideal, either in 
terms of amenity, or as a solution to root and leaf litter issues. Therefore, the tree can be said to 
be unsuitable for its location. 
 
iv) Replacement planting 
 
The applicant has offered to plant another tree and suggested a birch in another part of the front 
garden in a more prominent position away from properties. This option might mitigate the long 
term loss of this tree and maintain the presence of an attractive landscape feature in this front 
garden.  
 
Conclusion 

 
The tree has moderate public amenity and is not ideally suited to its position. Pruning has not 
resolved perennial problems of blocked drains, cracked driveway or debris in gutters. On balance, 
therefore, there are grounds for a recommendation to allow felling of the tree due to its location, 
which justify its removal. The proposal is considered to accord with Local Plan Landscape Policy 
LL9 and is, therefore, recommended for approval. 
 
In the event of members granting permission to fell this tree, it is recommended to attach a 
condition that ensures a replacement is planted..  
   
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Robin Hellier 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564546 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 

Page 35



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

1 0 8
. 2 m

109
. 1m

109
. 1m

1 0 8
. 2 m

7 8 a

F o r e s t  C
o u r t

1 to 9

24

Stewart
Court

2 32 3

3 6

3 4

3 6

3 4

2 42 4

39 to 44

39 to 44

V e t
e r i n

a r y

C e
n t r e

7 8 a

F o r e s t  C
o u r t

1 to 9

V e t
e r i n

a r y

C e
n t r e

8 6

55

8 8

90

8 6

8 8

90

55

15

1 6

15

1 6

9 0 c

22

9 0 d
C h a p e l  V i e w1

22

9 0 d

24

9 0 c C h a p e l  V i e w1

Sub
El

Sub
Sta

El

Sta

12

An n e s  Co u rt

12

4
3

2

1

An n e s  Co u rt

4
3

2

1

9 2 b

9 2

69
9 2 b

9 2

69

11

11 11

1 0 0

2

77

71

9 8

2

77

71

9 8
1 0 0

1 5

Stewart
Court

1 5

H E M N A L L  S T R E E T

T H E Y D O N  P L A
C E

P L ACE
T H

E Y
D O

N

H E M N A L L  S T R E E T

T H E Y D O N  P L A
C E

P L ACE
T H

E Y
D O

N

Q ueens Al l ey

Q ueens Al l ey

* *

*

**

*

*

* *

*

**
*

***

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/2176/12 
Site Name: 65 Hemnall Street, Epping 

CM16 4LZ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 36



Report Item No: 4  
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2255/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 51 Hornbeam Road 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7JU 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Crawford & Company 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/04/12 
T2 - Oak - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=543540 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The report on which the application is based does not support the felling of the tree.  
The loss of the tree's visual amenity has not been demonstrated to be necessary or 
justified and is therefore contrary to policy LL9 of the Council's Adopted Local Plan 
and Alterations.. 

 
This application is before this committee as any application to fell a preserved tree falls outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Site 
 
The tree stands on what appears to be highway verge outside the garden fence of 51 Hornbeam 
Road.  It is in a visually prominent location on the western approach to Theydon Bois village.   
 
Description of Proposal 
 
Fell tree 
 
Relevant History 
 
TPO/EPF/4/12 was made in June in response to the arrival of tree surgeons on site to fell the tree.   
 
Following considerable discussion on site and a request that felling be delayed the TPO was 
commenced following consultation with local councillors and the portfolio holder. The agents for 
the insurers of 51 Hornbeam Road informed the Council’s Principal Officer Landscape & Trees 
that they would destroy the tree by ring barking it to prevent the order taking effect.  On arrival 
back at the site with the TPO the officer observed that the ring barking had not been carried out 
before serving the order.  The order was therefore validly made.  The tree was observed to be ring 

Page 37



barked later that afternoon.  This report however, concerns only the determination of this 
application not the legal ramifications of that attempted destruction of the preserved tree.   
 
Relevant Policies 
 
LL9 Felling of preserved trees “the council will not give consent to fell a tree…. protected by a TPO 
unless it is satisfied that this is necessary and justified…. any such consent will be conditional 
upon the appropriate replacement of the tree” 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
None received at the time of preparing this report.  Any representations received will be reported 
orally to the committee.  
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The TPO represented a reasonable response by the LPA to the intended felling of the tree.  The 
felling was occasioned by cracking to the property for which the oak tree was blamed.  The order 
was intended to allow the Council proper scrutiny of the supporting evidence and was justified 
because of its particular importance in the local street scene.   
 
The application however, is not made on the basis of the then alleged subsidence.  It is made 
solely on the basis of a report commissioned by the Council in respect of the contravention of the 
TPO, and specifically whether the tree could be said to have been destroyed by it.   
 
Because of the attempted ring barking of the tree (that is the cutting of a channel through the bark, 
phloem (or bast) and cambium and into the sapwood) the future of the tree was in some doubt.  As 
a result of that the Council commissioned an independent report from a tree pathologist, Dr David 
Lonsdale.  The application quotes particular excerpts from Dr Lonsdale’s report, but submits no 
other evidence.  The application states specifically that the justification is based on the opinion of 
the Council’s appointed expert and do not constitute findings of the agent, Marishal Thompson.   
 
The application points specifically to 4 sections within the report: 
1.3: 90% of the stem circumference has lost physiological functionality.  
1.5:  2/3 of the tree’s canopy is now expected to (potentially) die back.  In relation to this they state 
that if this is the correct assessment they believe that this process poses an unexceptional risk to 
people and property nearby as sections of the tree could fail/be lost during this process.   
5.1.4:  The supporting root structure is believed to be compromised by way of reduced phloem 
activity.  
5.1.11: The report highlights that the tree is now considered vulnerable to adverse weather 
conditions.   
 
In relation to these references felling does not follow from the report as a reasonable conclusion.  
The author of the report has confirmed that he does not believe that felling is a reasonable or 
necessary step at present.  He has agreed that the tree could be retained for a reasonable period, 
subject to monitoring to determine how it will be affected by the partial ring barking.   
 
The crux of Dr Lonsdale’s report was how seriously had the tree been damaged and whether it 
could be said to have been destroyed.  Although complete ring barking will necessarily kill a tree 
the incompetent ring barking carried out on this tree removed 90% of the phloem and cambium 
and a lesser percentage of the sapwood.  The report’s findings were that the oak will therefore 
continue to function, albeit with reduced vigour.  The crown is likely to die back, but the extent or 
speed of that cannot as yet be accurately predicted.   
 

Page 38



There are no visible effects in the crown whatsoever at present.  There will have been no loss of 
anchorage and there is at present no increased risk of deadwood falling and causing a safety 
problem either for the highway or for the owners of 51 Hornbeam Road.  The tree is not therefore 
unsafe in the short or medium term.  Of course the applicants could undertake more detailed 
research and submit their own view as to the likely effects upon the tree of the damage that they 
instigated.  This however they have not taken the opportunity of doing.   
 
The applicants ask that the Council give permission, by condition, for reduction of the crown by a 
percentage that the Council will specify.  As stated, the officers’ view, which is also the view of the 
independent consultant, is that the best course of action would be to wait until at least the latter 
part of summer 2013 to see what effect the attempted ring barking has had upon the functionality 
of the crown.  It may then be possible to make recommendations as to pruning.  However, it is 
important not to undertake an excessive or premature crown reduction which could reduce the 
likelihood of the tree’s survival. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Given that a careful reading of the report by Dr Lonsdale, quoted as the sole basis for the 
application, does not lead to a conclusion that the oak should be felled and therefore having 
regard to the oak’s size and prominent location, felling has not been demonstrated to be either 
necessary or justified.  The application is therefore recommended for refusal in line with the 
relevant policy LL9 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 2006.   
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

59.4m59.4m

The Corner

36

22

17

68

6 4

68

6 4

6 2

5 9

20

6 9

30

5 9

20

6 9

30

8

Sub Sta

10

8

El
Sub Sta

10

El

41

5 1

39

5 1

41

39

6 a

6

7

6

7

6 a

3 7

Graylands

6

7

Graylands

3 7

6

7

16

13

17

16

13

17

Maple

7 17 1

Close

3

Maple
Close

3

20

12

1

20

12

1

1

4 1

1a

1

4 1

1a 1

1

4 6

Redcot

4 6

Redcot

H O RN BEAM RO AD

R O
A D

H O R N B E A M  R O A D

H O
R N

B E
A M

R O
A D

H O R N B E A M  R O A D

H O
R N

B E
A M

D r
a i n

D r
a i n

*
*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/2255/12 
Site Name: 51 Hornbeam Road, Theydon Bois 

CM16 7JU 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 40



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2261/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Inverellen  

62 Hoe Lane 
Lambourne 
Romford 
Essex 
RM4 1AU 
 

PARISH: Lambourne 
 

WARD: Lambourne 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Carol Curbishley 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/06/08 
T1 - Willow - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=543580 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing and in advance by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one 
month of the implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the 
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years 
from the date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, 
dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species 
and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 
This application is before this committee as any application to fell a preserved tree falls outside the 
scope delegated powers. 
 
Description of Site 
 
62 Hoe Lane is an attached property at the southern edge of the village. The tree stands on the 
front south east corner of the property and is visible entering the village.   
 
Description of Proposal 
 
Fell 
 

Page 41



Relevant History 
 
TPO/EPF/06/08 was made in 2008 to protect the willow which was under threat as a result of a 
boundary dispute.  There is no other specific history.  
 
Summary of Representations 
 
None received at the time of writing; any received later will be reported orally.   
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The application is made solely as a result of the poor health of the tree.   
 
The contorted willow is generally an attractive and unusual medium sized tree with characteristic 
corkscrew shaped stems.  However, this tree is now showing evidence of poor health in the crown.  
The leaf coverage has been thin for the last couple of years and the crown has now started to die 
back.  The symptoms are characteristic of infection by honey fungus although the fruiting bodies 
themselves have not been seen.  There is no realistic chance of recovery or treatment available.   
 
Conclusion 
 
Felling therefore accords with policy LL9 of the Local Plan and Alterations 2006 in that it is 
necessary and justified and the application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to prior 
written agreement to a suitable replacement.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 

4 7

52

H
O

E L A
N

E
*

*

*

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/2261/12 
Site Name: Inverellen, 62 Hoe Lane 

Lambourne, RM4 1AU 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 43



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2513/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Mulberry House  

Chelmsford Road  
High Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9NL 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Ray George 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Amended Masterplan proposal (including revised car park 
arrangement and landscaping proposals) for the demolition of 
structures including (chalet bedroom wing (17 Rooms), 
various outbuildings and hard standings associated with 
temporary marquee). Erection of replacement building to 
provide dining room, dedicated kitchen, reception lounge, 25 
guest bedrooms and basement containing meeting room, 
office, gym and plant room. 
(Associated car parking and landscaping) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=533513 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No development shall take place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:  Location Map; Location Plan; 0907/103 rev. A; 0907/103.1 
rev. A; 0907/104 rev. A; 0907/105; 0907/106; 0907/107; 0907/108; 0907/109 rev. A; 
0907/110 rev. B; 0907/111 rev. B; 0907/112 rev. B; 0907/113 rev. B; and 0907/114 
and the Arboricultural Method Statement (May 2011).  
 

4 Other than on New Year's Eve, the use of the dining/bar/reception room by guests 
shall cease at 23.30 on any day.   
 

Page 44



5 No amplified live music shall be played externally, nor other amplified noise source 
deployed externally nor shall fireworks be set off within the application site. 
 

6 Any internally generated noise source shall be limited to 85dB(A)Lamax.  All 
equipment and fittings installed in accordance with this condition shall thereafter be 
retained as approved in a functioning condition and maintained in accordance with 
their manufacturers' instructions, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its 
prior written consent to any variation. 
 

7 No external lighting or hard landscaping (for example paths) shall be erected within 
the site without the prior written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, rooflights, 
eaves, verges, fascias, cills, structural openings and junctions with the existing 
building, by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, 
shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the commencement 
of any works. 
 

9 Details and colours of all external pipes, extracts, grilles, flues, lights and any alarm 
boxes or satellite dishes to be fixed to the fabric of the building shall be  submitted to 
and approved by the LPA prior to their installation. 
 

10 A sample panel of brickwork shall be constructed on site showing the proposed 
brickbond, mortar mix and pointing profile to be used on the new build, to be agreed 
in writing with the LPA. 
 

11 A schedule of works describing the proposed repairs to the garden wall, including 
the removal of wiring and lights, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
LPA prior to the commencement of works. 
 

12 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of surface 
water drainage shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in 
writing.  The development shall proceed in accordance with the agreed details.   
 

13 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place. 
 

14 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 

Page 45



of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

15 A Landscape Management Plan, including long term design objectives, 
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, 
other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the development 
or any phase of the development, whichever is the sooner, for its permitted use. The 
landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved. 
 

 
Subject to the completion, within 3 months, of a legal agreement under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 
 

1. The removal of structures including the rockeries, marquee, hard standing and 
access road within 3 months of the first occupation of the extension; 

2. To complete works to repair the garden wall within 3 months of the first occupation 
of the extension; and 

3. Not at any time following the grant of planning permission to implement the 
additional car park, permitted under planning application ref: EPF/2132/00. 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application contrary to the provisions of an 
approved draft Development Plan or Development Plan, and is recommended for approval 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(a)), since it is an application for major commercial and other 
developments, (e.g. developments of significant scale and/or wide concern) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of 
Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(c)), and since the recommendation is for approval 
contrary to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site:  
   
A Grade II listed building which is used as a training and conference centre, Christian retreat, 
guest house, restaurant and function rooms. There have been a number of ancillary buildings 
granted on the site in the last 20 years to accommodate these uses. The site is 150m to the north-
west of the village envelope of High Ongar and immediately to the south of the A414. The whole 
site is within the Green Belt.  
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for extensive works within the application site.  These 
works would involve the demolition of the existing chalet guest accommodation to the side of the 
Mulberry Suite and also several sheds and other outbuildings.  The application also confirms (by 
way of unilateral undertaking), the Applicant’s intention to remove a number of unauthorised 
structures from the site including a marquee and related hard surfaced area and the rockery 
features which are situated either side of the entrance to the site from the A414.   
 

Page 46



The application proposes the erection of substantial additions which would facilitate a meeting 
room and gym at basement level; a 140 cover dining room with reception lounge/bar and 13 guest 
bedrooms at ground floor level; and a further 12 guest bedrooms at first floor level.   
 
No change is proposed in relation to existing car parking provision, although the Applicant does 
propose, by way of a Unilateral Undertaking under Section 106, not to implement an extant 
planning permission for the addition of an additional car park to the front of the main buildings. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
Extensive planning history – relevant entries include: 
 
EPF/2131/00.  Change of use from a mixed use comprising training/conference centre and 
Christian retreat with residential accommodation to a mixed use comprising training/conference 
centre, Christian retreat, guest house, restaurant and function rooms.  Refused planning 
permission, but subsequently granted at appeal following Public Inquiry. 
 
EPF/2132/00.  Resurfacing of existing car park, increase in car parking area, associated 
landscaping, increase in maximum number of guests present on site at any one time to 140.  
Refused planning permission, but subsequently granted at appeal following Public Inquiry. 
 
EPF/0648/09.  Variance of condition 7 of EPF/2131/00 allowed on appeal 30 May 2002. 
Application for restaurant use to be permitted in dining room and garden room (conservatory) from 
7am until 11.30pm - seven days per week.  Approved 13/08/2009. 
 
Several planning applications have been submitted for the erection/retention of a marquee since 
2009.  These have been refused planning permission and enforcement action has been taken in 
respect of the marquee, which has been erected seasonally.   
 
EPF/2322/10.  Demolition of chalet bedroom wing (17 Rooms), various outbuildings and hard 
standings (associated with temporary marquee) and erection of replacement building to provide 
dining room, dedicated kitchen, reception lounge, 25 guest bedrooms and basement containing 
meeting room and ancillary facilities comprising office, gym and plant room.  Application 
withdrawn.   
 
EPF/2692/10.   Entrance feature comprising rockery, ponds and retaining walls.  Application 
withdrawn.   
 
Planning Enforcement 
 
ENF/0408/11.  Marquee erected no planning permission.  Enforcement Notice served 31/10/2011 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A   Green Belt Policy 
GB7A  Conspicuous Development 
DBE1   Design 
DBE9 &RP5A Adverse environmental impacts 
ST6  Parking 
HC12  Setting of a Listed Building 
LL11  Landscaping Schemes 
 

Page 47



Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to High Ongar Parish Council and to 1 neighbouring 
resident.  A site notice was also displayed on Chelmsford Road, opposite the site entrance.     
 
The following representations have been received: 
 
HIGH ONGAR PARISH COUNCIL.  Objection.  The Parish Council object to the above application 
on the basis that it is both detrimental to a listed building and the green belt.  It does not agree that 
the very special circumstances which permit development within the green belt have been met and 
I attach a listing of observations and comments which was produced by ward councillors after 
studying the plans.  
 
The Parish Council have a copy of the title deeds for this property which show that in the 
Conveyance of the land dated 7 January 1976 a covenant exists which restricts what could take 
place at Mulberry House and I attach a copy of the title deeds that gives further details.   However, 
it is likely that there is an amendment to this covenant dated July 2004 and a copy has been 
requested from the Land Registry for more information. 
 
Further notes made by the Parish Council in relation to the application submission are attached at 
Appendix 1.   
 
SPADGERS, THE STREET.  Objection.  I would like to register my strong opposition to the 
redevelopment of Mulberry House.  I have lived in High Ongar 13 years and Mulberry House was 
open as a Christian retreat and now just appears to be a growing commercial business.  I believe 
the current venue is large enough and any further redevelopment would affect the local area in a 
negative way.  Please take this email as my strong objection to the proposed development. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues in this case are the impacts of the proposed development on: 
 
Neighbouring Amenity; 
The open character and appearance of the Green Belt; 
The setting of the listed building; 
Trees and Landscaping; and  
Parking and Highways.    
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
The recent use of the unauthorised marquee within the site has generated significant levels of 
complaint from nearby local residents who have had their amenity considerably harmed by noise 
and disruption from events at the site late into the night.  Whilst the submitted legal agreement 
would oblige the Applicant to remove the marquee and associated area from the site, only limited 
weight is given to this benefit of the proposal – as the removal of these unauthorised structures 
can also be secured by means of a current effective enforcement notice.   
 
In relation to the proposed development, events would be contained within solid buildings and 
there would be no overall increase in the number of guests/visitors permitted to be present on site 
at any one time (limited by planning condition to 140 people).  Subject to the repetition of planning 
conditions relating to permitted hours and noise levels, it is not considered that there would be any 
increased harm caused to residential amenity.   
 

Page 48



The open character and appearance of the Green Belt 
 
The site is located in the Green Belt and this provides the main constraint to the future 
development of the site.  The impacts of the proposed development on the open character and 
appearance of the area must be considered and if any harm is found to be caused to the open 
character of the Green Belt then this harm must be outweighed by very special circumstances.   
 
The application proposes the demolition of some structures.  No weight should be applied to the 
removal of structures which are unauthorised (including the marquee, its hard standing and the 
rockery entrance features) – on the basis that powers exist to remove those anyway.   
 
The proposed development would result in the demolition of the existing guest rooms to the side of 
Mulberry House and also several existing outbuildings.   
 
The demolition of the existing guest accommodation would result in a loss of approximately 
557.5m² in floor area and (having regard only to the development above ground level) 
approximately 2034.8m³ in volume.   
 
The sheds to be removed (excluding the glasshouses, which by their nature have a less significant 
impact on the Green Belt) amount to a total floor area of approximately 140m² and applying an 
approximately average height of 2.5m to these buildings, a volume of approximately 350m³ would 
be lost.   

 
The proposed development would loosely follow along similar lines to that which exists at present 
when viewed in elevation form, with the exception of the ‘cottage’ style building located at the end 
of the wing, which would increase the footprint of the building form.   
 
The proposed development would provide two storeys of accommodation where only single storey 
buildings exist at present – however, this may be accommodated within loosely the same height as 
the existing building, on the basis that quite substantial ground works would be undertaken to sink 
the building into the ground (the exact level of the building may be controlled by the imposition of a 
planning condition requiring the Council’s approval of levels prior to the commencement of works). 

 
Accordingly, whilst the proposed development would see an increase in the footprint of buildings 
by approximately 30%, the volume increase would be much greater at approximately 74%, due to 
the increased height of the proposal in relation to existing buildings.  It is considered that these 
increases and also the increased prominence of the ‘cottages’ element of the development result 
in a significant impact upon the openness of the Green Belt.  The development is, therefore 
considered to be inappropriate development within the Green Belt.   
 
This view is contrary to that expressed by the Applicant’s Agent, who has stated during the course 
of this planning application: Paragraph 89 clarifies that the construction of new buildings should be 
regarded as inappropriate in the Green Belt, except for certain defined exceptions. Of the 
exceptions, which are set out in six bullet points, the current proposal suitably adheres to bullet 
point six: 

Accordingly, the total lost floor space arising from the development would be 697.5m², 
representing a volume of approximately 2384.8m³. 

Estimations of the proposed floor area and volume as calculated from the submitted plans are 
that the proposal would result in the addition of approximately 908m² representing a volume of 
approximately 4,153.5m³. 

Page 49



 
“Limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites (brownfield 
land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not 
have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within 
it than the existing development.” 
 
The proposal clearly represents the suitable redevelopment of a previously developed site with no 
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than 
the existing development. It does this through the erection of proposed built form in lieu of the 
demolition of existing structures on the site which are of a comparable footprint and scale to the 
proposal though of inferior design. 
 
In being in accordance with bullet point six the proposal constitutes appropriate development in the 
Green Belt which does not require a demonstration of very special circumstances. Notwithstanding 
this position, very special circumstances exist in any case, as set out in the original planning 
application submissions. 
 
The Planning Officer has considered the opinion of the Applicant’s agent, but does still consider 
that the redevelopment would have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and 
would, therefore, be inappropriate development in the Green Belt.  However, this does not mean 
that the application is necessarily unacceptable – consideration must first be given to whether or 
not there are very special circumstances which exist which would justify permitting the 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. 
 
Several key issues are relevant when considering the case for very special circumstances: 
 
� The proposed development would be considerably more attractive than that which exists at 

present – result in a significant improvement to the character and appearance of the site.  
  
� In addition to appearing more aesthetically pleasing, as above, the development would also 

be far more complementary to the setting and narrative of the historic building and, as a 
result, has the support of Historic Buildings Advisors at Essex County Council.  

 
� The site contains an events venue which, if successfully operated, would benefit the local 

economy, in terms of direct employment and also linked revenue to other local business 
within the District.  High Ongar Parish Council has raised concern regarding the lack of any 
economic appraisal to justify the Applicant’s position that the development will aid the 
viability of the venue, which it presently advises is running at a loss, being financially 
supported by the Applicant (the applicant advises, to the sum of £370,000 per annum). 
However, on the basis that it is readily clear that the proposed development would improve 
the attractiveness of the venue to prospective clients, Officers do not consider it necessary 
to require such an appraisal to be submitted.  In any event, there would be no factual 
information relating to revenues following the completion of this development and any such 
appraisal would be dependant on the Applicant’s own forecasts and therefore difficult for 
the Council to independently appraise.  It is clear to the Officers that the operation of an 
economically viable business from the site is essential to the long term future of Mulberry 
House, which is a local heritage asset.   

 
� The submitted unilateral undertaking forfeits the implementation of an additional car park 

(previously approved to the front of the main building) which has a continuing extant 
planning permission on the basis that it formed part of a consent which has previously 
been commenced.   

 
� It is also argued that the Applicant’s costs in providing the ghosted right hand turn land 

from the A414 into the site (a requirement imposed following the successful 2002 appeal) 

Page 50



were disproportionate and accordingly some economic return is necessary – however, the 
highway improvement works already exist and have previously been provided as very 
special circumstances for earlier developments at the site.  It is not, therefore, considered 
by officers that significant weight may be applied to this issue when determining the extent 
of the very special circumstances.   

 
As always, the issue of balancing inappropriate development within the Green Belt against a case 
for very special circumstances is difficult.  However, in this case the aesthetic improvements to the 
development are significant.  The impact of the scale and mass of the development when viewed 
from the A414 would be minimised by the articulation afforded by the design which is broken down 
into several distinct elements.  Furthermore, views of the extensions from this public vantage point 
would be softened by the existing planting along this boundary of the site.  On the basis of this and 
the considerable improvements to the setting of the listed building, it is the opinion of Planning 
Officers that considerable benefits exist in this case which outweigh the harm caused to the 
openness of the Green Belt.   
 
The setting of the listed building 
 
The Senior Historic Buildings Advisor at Essex County Council has been consulted on the 
planning application and has commented as follows:   
 
The demolition and redevelopment proposals should enhance the setting of the listed building 
considerably, removing features which severely detract from the setting of the listed building and 
replacing them with structures of complementary design. 
 
Subject to the imposition of several recommended planning conditions, the Historic Buildings 
Advisor is supportive of the proposal.  On the basis of this professional advice, it is also the 
opinion of planning officers that the proposed development would not cause any harm to the 
setting of the listed building and would, on that basis, accord with both local and national planning 
policies.    
 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
The Council’s Arboricultural Officer originally objected to the planning application, on the basis of 
discrepancies between the tree protection plans and the architectural plans.  However, following 
the correction of this matter, the Arboricultural Officer has provided the following comment: 
 
The information provided indicates the removal of the unpleasant rockeries and the hardstanding 
and a detailed planting scheme for the entrance area.  I take it from the “Removals” plan that the 
additional car parking/ turning area associated with the wedding marquee is to be removed as 
well, which will also be beneficial.   
 
This is an important and visually prominent building with an equally important landscape setting.  
As I see it the proposal benefits both.  At the moment there is a good balance between the main 
house, (which is a big house, rather than a mansion), its subsidiary outbuildings and the 
surrounding landscaped grounds, well planted with (largely) appropriate trees.   The proposals 
retains that, and possibly improves the relationship between house and outbuildings, removes 
undesirable features, (although there would be planning enforcement routes to achieve the same 
ends in most cases) and potentially enables significant improvement to the landscape context, by 
positive management of what is there, and appropriate new planting.   
 

There are trees shown to be removed, but none significant or visually important.  The new trees 
shown will be more than adequate compensation.   
 

Page 51



On the basis of the Officer’s advice, it is the opinion of planning officers that the proposed 
development would not cause any harm to trees within the site, or to its landscape setting.   
 
Parking and Highways 
 
Access to the site would continue via the existing drive leading form the A414.   
 
It is proposed to retain the existing (70) car parking spaces.  No additional car parking is proposed 
and as referred to above, it is also proposed that the extant planning permission for an additional 
car parking area to the front of the main building will be foregone.   
 
Whilst the level of accommodation and facilities within the site will be significantly increased, the 
Applicant specifically states that the number of guests on site at any one time will be retained at 
the existing cap of 140 people (the extensions will just provide more efficient space for 
accommodating those guests throughout the duration of an event).   
 
On this basis, it is considered that the retention of existing levels of car parking is sufficient.   
 
Other Matters 
 
Flood Risk – Officers within the Council’s Land Drainage Section have been consulted on the 
planning application and have commented as follows: 
 
The site does not lie within an EFDC flood risk assessment zone, but the development is of a size 
where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and the opportunity of new development 
should be taken to improve existing surface water runoff – the Applicant has provided a Flood Risk 
Assessment with the application and we agree with the findings in principle.  Because the site lies 
within the Environment Agency’s designated Flood Zone 2, the Applicant should refer to the EA’s 
standing advice.  The Applicant proposes to discharge surface water by sustainable drainage 
system, further details are required – this may be secured by the imposition of a planning 
condition.    
 
Legal Agreement – The Applicant has submitted a unilateral undertaking which would oblige them 
to remove existing structures within the site (including the rockery, marquee and its hard standing), 
to complete repair works to an existing garden wall and would also prevent them from 
implementing an extant planning permission for additional car parking following the 
commencement of the development which is the subject of this planning application.  Two 
amendments to this undertaking have been sought by the Planning Officer: 
 

1. That the structures to be removed include the access road which leads from the hard 
surface below the marquee to the main drive into Mulberry House; and  

 
2. That the obligation not to implement the additional car parking is triggered by the 

granting of planning permission rather than by its implementation – this would prevent 
the possibility of the Applicant installing the additional car parking following the grant of 
planning permission but prior to its implementation.   

 
Conclusion: 
 
The development is inappropriate within the Green Belt and would result in a considerable 
increase the built volume within the site.  However very special circumstances, as referred to 
previously within this report, exist which would, on balance, justify permitting the development.  
Furthermore the proposal would be satisfactory in respect of other policy considerations, including 
the impact on nearby neighbouring residents, the character and appearance of the area, the 
setting of the listed building, the landscape setting of the site and matters of parking and highway 

Page 52



access.  It is, therefore, the balanced recommendation of Officers that planning permission be 
granted subject to the submission of a revised unilateral undertaking to take account of the above.   
It is also requested that the Committee authorises Officers to refuse planning permission, in the 
event that reasonable progress is not made to complete a satisfactory agreement under Section 
106 within 3 months of the date of this committee.   
 
 
Appendix 1: Further Comments made by High Ongar Parish Council 
 

NOTES ON PLANNING APPLICATION EPF/2513/11 
MULBERRY HOUSE RETREAT AND LEISURE LTD 

   
REPLIES      COMMENTS ON REPLIES 
ITEM 6     Any new public roads within site – ‘No’ New roads will have to be made to access 

new proposed building entrances 

 

ITEM 10.   Vehicle Parking. 
                 Existing number of spaces  - 70 Proposed number of spaces – 70 +2 disabled   
   (+ 2 disabled parking bays) no change despite increase in covers in 

restaurant, increase in numbers staying 
overnight plus increase in staff – ignoring 
conference needs, and increase in area. 

 
ITEM 18. Class A3 Restaurants and cafes 
– no floor space entered. Restaurant has been operating on site for 

some considerable time. 
Class C1 Hotels and halls of residence – 604 sq.m Increase to 1115 sq.m – almost doubled 
Class D1 Non-residential No floor space entered Increase to 709 sq.m 
 despite existing conference suite 
Total Existing floor space = 604 sq.m Proposed floor space =  1824.6 sq.m treble 

the previous amount. 
 
ITEM 19 Employment   
Existing   Full time = 21 Proposed Full time = 23     +2 
Existing   Part time = 40 Proposed part time = 45    +5          
 
ITEM 24. Visibility from public road, footpath,  Highly visible from A414 thanks to removal of 
bridleway  or other public land – stated ‘No’ hedge and can be seen from public footpath 

(Essex Way). 
 
Additional questions - How many other bedrooms are there in e.g. The Mulberry Suite? (answer 

given as 5 doubles, some of which are Family 
rooms) 

How many staff bedrooms and how many staff will be required to stay overnight? (no answer 
given) 

 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

Clatterford
Bridge

TCB

L a y - B y

A l l o t m e n t  G a r d e n s

Camp Site

P a t h  ( u m )

El Sub Sta

P i pe Li ne

Bridge

Foot Bridge

P a t h  ( u m )

Foot

Bridge

LB

FB

W e i r

High Ongar

High
Ongar Clatterford End

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/2513/11 
Site Name: Mulberry House, Chelmsford Road  

High Ongar, CM5 9NL 
Scale of Plot: 1/5000 

Page 54



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1245/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Ivy Cottage Mews 

Theydon Park Road 
Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7LW 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Ronald Roast 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of sliding gates across vehicular access at front of 
site, removal of section of infected hedge and planting of 
replacement hedge. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=538799 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The roots of this section of hedge shall not be removed. Any additional planting in 
the hedge, which may be desirable to ensure full growth, shall be carried out using 
the plant species described in the Council’s letter of 19/3/12. ref: 
PL/CJN/PC/EPF/0810/11. 
  

 
This application is before this Committee because the recommendation is for approval contrary to 
an objection from the Parish Council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - 
(pursuant to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, 
schedule 1, appendix A (g)).   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Erection of sliding gates across vehicular access at front of site and removal of section of infected 
hedge to 0.3m above ground level.    
  
Description of Site: 
 
One of 3 new bungalows built some 2 to 3 years ago on the site of a former dwelling. There are 
two vehicular accesses to the site – the southerly one serves two of the bungalows at the rear of 
the site and the northerly one serves the bungalow subject of this application - which lies in a more 
forward position on the site between 2.8m and 6m from the front boundary. Most of this front 

Page 55



boundary of the site consists of a hedge but there are two 1.6m lengths of a wall (0.9m in height) 
on either side of the access to the application property.   
 
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/1913/08 gave approval to the replacement of the former dwelling on the site with 3 
bungalows. 
 
*The above planning permission was subject to a number of planning conditions, including a 
condition that required the retention of landscaping which includes the hedge.   
 
EPF/0810/12 was a refusal of a proposal to replace a 3m section of hedge with a brick wall as 
continuation of an existing wall, to facilitate provision of an electronic sliding gate to the property – 
it was refused on grounds of loss of visual amenity in the street scene. This refusal was also 
supported on appeal.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.           
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL – Object – the Parish Council strongly supports the retention 
of hedgerows particularly in this type of rural location and this is one of the fundamental principles 
contained in the Theydon Bois village design statement. We note the previous decisions on the 
property and we object to the proposal. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 9 properties consulted and no replies received. 
 
EFDC TREES AND LANDSCAPE – this section of hedge does suffer from a viral infection and 
would benefit from suitable management, which could be as radical as cutting right to the base. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Since this application was submitted the proposal has been clarified in that it is not proposed to 
completely remove this section of hedge, but to cut it back to 0.3m (12 ins) in height. This cutting 
back is needed because this section of hedge is thin and poor and suffers from a viral infection. 
The Council’s Tress and Landscape section agree that cutting back the hedge to this height will 
allow it to recover. Although this recovery may take several years this is a preferable solution than 
leaving the hedge as it is to die. A temporary light weight green coloured open mesh wire fence 
will be erected to protect the hedge once it is cut back.  
 
The proposed gates to be erected across the access would be of an open railing design, and 
would be 0.95m at the sides rising to 1.25m in the middle. The style and height of these proposed 
gates is appropriate and will not unduly affect visual amenity in the street scene. 
 
Comments on representations received. 
 
The Parish Council objects to the removal of this hedge. However some ambiguity over the initial 
description of development has been removed. It is not proposed to remove all of the hedge, but to 
cut it back to 0.3m in height in order for it to re-grow and to save it from disease.   
 
Conclusion: 
 

Page 56



The proposal is acceptable and conditional approval is recommended.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

6 0

4 8

Jenna

The Cottage

Trail

2

(Pol Ho)

24

2 a

2

4

2 b

3

4

2 3

1 8

D os s et t s  R et r eat

F o r e st

R e a c h

E l mb e c

Co tta g e s
Ches tnut

1a

1

V i e
w

12

Wo b u r n  Ho u se

P a
r kP o
n d

1

14

21

19

1 4

7

1

The Pond House

11

2

11

L o d
g e 8

2 5

1

1
2aB rook f ield

4a

W
h i t e

G at es

P A KE S  W
A Y

P O
P L

A R
 R

O W

T H E  G R E E N

Pla yg r o u n d

IVY C OTTAG
E M

EW
S

FB

LB

FB

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/1245/12 
Site Name: 1 Ivy Cottage Mews, Theydon Park 

Road, Theydon Bois, CM16 7LW 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 58



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1395/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Rear of Woodside Camp Site 

Weald Place Farm 
9 Duck Lane 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping 
Essex 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Mr William Alldis  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of grazing area to manege. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=539505 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Site Plan date stamped 20/07/12, The additional Site Plan 
received 29/10/12, Site B plan date stamped 20/07/12. 
 

3 Materials to be used for the proposed manege shall match those specified within the 
applicants letter dated 29/10/12. For clarity, the surface material shall be sand and 
recycled rubber contained within a permeable membrane, and the fencing shall be a 
1.2m (4ft) high timber post and rail fence, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority 
 

4 The manege hereby permitted shall be used solely in conjunction with horses kept at 
the site known as Weald Place Farm, Duck Lane, and shall not be used by horses 
brought onto the site for competitions or events or with the sole purpose of using the 
manege. 
 

5 No external lighting shall be installed without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 

Page 59



 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a large farm that has diversified into other commercial activities that 
includes an industrial estate, a shooting range and a commercial fishing lake. The application site 
consists of a parcel of an existing area of grazing land adjacent to the main farmyard accessed 
from Duck Lane. To the south of the site is a mixture of grassed and arable fields, however it is 
intended for all these fields to be used for grazing/equestrian use. The application site is located 
within the Metropolitan Green Belt and an EFDC Flood Risk Assessment Zone. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the change of use from an existing grazing area to a manege. As 
confirmed by letter dated 29th October 2012, the manege would only be used by horses resident to 
Weald Place Farm and not for any other horses brought onto the site, nor for any competition use. 
The proposed manege would be fenced by a 1.2m (4ft) post and rail stock fence and would be 
surfaced with sand and recycled rubber contained within a permeable membrane. This would be 
1250 sq. m. in area and located within a field currently used for grazing and exercising horses. 
 
Whilst the original submitted application included the erection of stables, this element has 
been removed from the proposal. Furthermore, all other works currently taking place on 
site, including the imported materials, are subject to ongoing enforcement investigations 
and are not the subject of this planning application. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
There is a long history to the site, including details of the diversification that has taken place on the 
agricultural holding, however none are specifically relevant to this application. 
 
There are ongoing enforcement investigations on the site with regards to the importation of waste, 
laying of new roadways, and with regards to works subsequently starting on the installation of the 
manege. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL2 – Inappropriate rural development 
RST4 – Horse keeping 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
36 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 22/08/12. All 
neighbours and the Parish Council were reconsulted on the removal of the stables from the 
proposal. 
 

Page 60



PARISH COUNCIL (latest comments) – Object. Members have a concern that on the amended 
application it is not confirmed as to whether or not the stables form part of this application or if they 
have been removed from the application, however the Parish Council continues to object to both 
the stables and to the manege as the proposal is too close to adjoining residential homes and 
would cause a nuisance to residents by way of noise, smells, and vehicle movements. The plans 
submitted bear no resemblance to the explanation of what is being required so further accurate 
plans should be sought. There are no actual details of how it would actually be represented on the 
site. There is a large amount of soil which has been imported on to the site, and is continuing to be 
imported and we ask that the Enforcement Department visit to check this out. There is a concern 
about the drainage on the site, together with an adjacent brook, which any waste matter could 
drain into, that is why accurate plans relating to the manege (including drainage) are necessary. 
 
41 DUCK LANE – Object to the increased usage of the area and resulting disturbance, the 
unacceptable working hours, potential parking problems that would result from a commercial 
stables/riding school, the existing field access adjacent to their property may be utilised for the 
commercial stables, concerns about the use of the field for gymkhanas, competitions and open 
days and the possible hiring out of the stables. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues here relate to the impact on the Green Belt, neighbours amenities, and with 
regards to highway and parking issues. 
 
Green Belt: 
 
Horsekeeping is recognised as an outdoor recreational use that retains openness (subject to the 
level of built form) and is often considered an acceptable form of development within the Green 
Belt. The long established Weald Place Farm includes stables within the existing farmyard, which 
are currently utilised for the stabling of horses, and the proposed manege would be located within 
an existing field used for grazing and exercising horses. 
 
Although the manege would introduce a large area of semi-hardstanding to this green field, it is not 
considered that the proposed development would be detrimental to the openness of the Green 
Belt and examples of this type of manege can be found throughout the District. The manege would 
be enclosed by a traditional post and rail fence, which is not considered harmful to the appearance 
or character of the Green Belt, and would serve an existing stables and paddock. 
 
Neighbours amenities: 
 
The proposed manege would be located some 60m from the closest residential neighbour. Whilst 
concern has been raised with regards to the potential loss of amenity due to noise and smell, the 
manege would be located within a field currently used for the exercising and grazing of horses. As 
such, the introduction of this semi-hardsurfaced horse exercise area would not result in any 
additional nuisance to nearby residents. 
 
Concerns have been raised by a nearby neighbour (with regards to the original submission 
regarding both the stables and the manege) about the potential commercial use of the site and the 
possibility of gymkhanas, competitions and open days taking place. Whilst this application deals 
specifically with the manege, rather than the site as a whole, it has been confirmed by the 
applicant that the proposed manege will only be used by horses stabled on Weald Place Farm, 
which would ensure that the manege is not used for competitions, shows, or by horses bought 
onto the site specifically to use this exercise area. This can be suitably controlled by way of a 
condition. 
 

Page 61



Highways/parking: 
 
The proposed manege would only be used by horses stabled at Weald Place Farm. As such, there 
would be no increase in vehicle movements associated with this development, nor any change to 
vehicle access or parking arrangements already serving the farm. 
 
Comments on Parish Council comments: 
 
Despite the Parish Councils statement that “it is not confirmed as to whether or not the stables 
form part of this application or if they have been removed from the application”, the reconsultation 
letter clearly stated that the proposal had changed and altered the description to read just ‘Change 
of use of grazing area to manege’. Furthermore, a conversation was had between the Planning 
Case Officer and the Parish Council Clerk whereby the situation regarding the removal of the 
proposed stables from the application and the ongoing enforcement investigations were discussed 
and clarified. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development would provide a manege to serve horses stabled within the existing 
stables on Weald Place Farm and would be located within a field currently used for grazing and 
exercising horses. This development would not constitute inappropriate development and would 
not be detrimental to surrounding neighbours, and as such the application is recommended for 
approval. Whilst there are several other unauthorised works currently taking place on site, these 
are subject to ongoing enforcement investigations and therefore are not relevant to this 
application. 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 62



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

76.5m

78.6m78.6m

76.5m

Beecroft

Brook

58

48

6 0

Weald Place Farm

Cottage

7

1

Weald Place

Silo

8

1

22

25

6

41

33

46

1 9

Woodside House

Woodside

34

25

5 5

3 0

4 9

44

2

2

2 3

Brook

58

48

6 0

Weald Place Farm

Cottage

7

1

Weald Place

Silo

Beecroft

Woodside

1

22
8

25

6

41

33

5 5

3 0

46

1 9

Woodside House

34

25

4 9

44

2

2

2 3

D
U

C
K

 L
A

N
E

W
O O D SI D E

D
U

C
K

 L
A

N
E

W
O O D SI D E

PondPond

E l  S u b  S t a

M o a t

LB

Scrap Yard

E l  S u b  S t a

M o a t

LB

Scrap Yard

ThornwoodThornwood

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 
Application Number: EPF/1395/12 
Site Name: Rear of Woodside Camp Site, Weald Place 

Farm, 9 Duck Lane, North Weald Bassett,  
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 63



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1433/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adj to   

Central House  
High Street 
Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 6AA 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

APPLICANT: D G Property Consultants  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing outbuilding and erection of new building 
consisting of 2 shops, and 5 flats. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=539619 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 621/01b; 621/06L; 621/09d 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development the access shall be provided with a 
dropped kerb crossing with a minimum width of 5.5 metres. 
 

5 Prior to first occupation of the development the existing access to the north shall be 
suitably and permanently closed as shown in principle on drawing no.621/06 Rev L, 
dated 20 July 2012,, to include the removal of the redundant radius kerbing, the 
reinstatement to full height of the dropped kerbing, and the resurfacing of the 
footway, to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the 
Highway Authority. 
 

6 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle 
parking area indicated on the approved plans, including any parking spaces for the 
mobility impaired, has been hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in parking bays. 
The vehicle parking area shall be retained in this form at all times. The vehicle 
parking shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are 
related to the use of the development unless otherwise agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

Page 64



7 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

8 No gates or other form of enclosure shall be erected or placed across the access.  
 

9 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision of a Travel Information and Marketing Pack for 
sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council. 
 

10 Prior to the installation of the refuse and cycle stores, details of these structures 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  The stores 
shall be installed, in accordance with the agreed detail, prior to the first occupation of 
the building hereby approved. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of 
Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)) and since the recommendation is for approval 
contrary to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The site is located adjacent to Chipping Ongar Conservation Area and Central House, a Grade II 
listed early 19th century building. 
 
The application site contains a detached single storey outbuilding which is thought to have 
originally accommodated changing rooms for Central House, which was formerly a grammar 
school.  By its age and association, this building is curtilage listed.  The application site also 
includes the forecourt area to the front of the building including the vehicular access point onto the 
High Street and part of the rear parking area.  Two individual car parking spaces are also included 
within the site area.   
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the outbuilding and its 
replacement with a two storey building with additional accommodation within the roof space.  The 
building would accommodate 2 shops (45.5m² and 44.8m² in floor area) and a 2 bed flat at ground 
floor level, 2 x 2 bed flats within the first floor and 2 x 2 bed flats within the roof space. 
 
The proposed building would comprise a section at the front with a Mansard style roof, a rear 
section with gabled sides and the middle section of the building would have a dual pitched roof 
with a central ridge connecting the front and rear elements of the building.  The front and rear roof 
slopes would each contain 3 dormer windows and the side roof slopes would contain roof lights.   
 
At approximately 9 metres high, the ridge of the proposed building would be slightly lower than that 
of Central House.   
 

Page 65



The vehicular access into the site would shift sideways, such that the 5m wide access way would 
be positioned between Central House and the proposed building.  To the rear of the proposed 
building adjacent to the boundary with Tesco’s petrol filling station would be 8 car parking spaces 
(2 to serve the shops and 6 to serve the flats).  Two of the existing parking bays would be 
allocated for a refuse store and a cycle store.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0523/06.  Demolition of outbuilding and construction of new building consisting of five flats 
and restaurant with parking spaces (Revised application).  Approved 12/06/2006.   
 
*The above planning application expired without being commenced.   
 
An application (EPF/1434/12) seeks listed building consent for the demolition of the listed building 
and is presently under consideration. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 – New Development 
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
H2A – Previously Developed Land 
TC3 – Town Centre Function 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicles Parking 
HC6 – Development affecting Conservation Areas 
HC11 – Demolition of Listed Buildings 
HC12 – Development affecting the Setting of a Listed Building   
DBE1 - Design 
DBE 2, 9 – Amenity 
DBE3 – Development in Urban Areas 
DBE6 – Car Parking 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Ongar Town Council and to 53 neighbouring properties.   
 
The following representations have been received: 
 
ONGAR TOWN COUNCIL.  Objection.  Ongar Town Council considers that the new building is 
unlikely to improve the setting of Central House or the special character of the Ongar conservation 
area.   
 
UNITS 1 & 2 REDBRICKS (Situated to the rear of the car park behind the proposed building).  
Comment.  These units are designed as office/storage and have large lorries delivering every 
weekday.  We are concerned about the access to the units not being sufficient for delivery lorries 
e.g. the width available to enter the rear of the new building and also the ability of the lorries to turn 
in the car park and not have to reverse into a main road.  The car park is already filled to capacity 
and the additional shops and flats will only add to the problems of access.  If this application is 
granted and access is not suitable for large vehicles then delivery lorries would have to park on the 
main road causing congestion in the high street. 
 

Page 66



Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues in this case are the impacts of the proposed development on the listed building 
and on the conservation area, the acceptability of the proposed design of the new building, levels 
of residential amenity and matters of parking and highway access.   
 
Impact on the Listed Building and the Conservation Area 
 
Both the EFDC Conservation Officer and the Senior Historic Buildings Advisor at Essex County 
Council have been consulted on this planning application.   
 
They do not raise any objection to the loss of the curtilage listed building, concluding that ‘although 
it does have a historic association with Central House, it does not form an integral element of the 
listed building’s significance and its loss will not cause any notable harm’. 
 
Furthermore, they consider that the proposed building would have a traditional form which would 
appear sympathetic to both the listed building (Central House) and the conservation area.  They 
state ‘the proposed building will enhance the appearance of the streetscene by continuing the 
building line of this part of the street’.   
 
Design of New Building 
 
As identified above by the Conservation and Historic Buildings Advisors, the building would be of 
traditional form that would complement the existing nearby development.  The building would be 
well proportioned and it is considered that it would result in an improvement to the street scene.  It 
is noted that Ongar Town Council does not consider that the proposed development would 
improve the setting of either Central House or the conservation area, but for the reasons above, 
Officers disagree with this conclusion.   
 
Residential Amenity 
 
Habitable rooms within the proposed flats would each have an acceptable level of amenity, in 
terms of natural light, outlook and privacy.   
 
No residential amenity space would be provided within the site.  However, due to the central 
location of the site and its proximity to areas of public open space, this is not considered reason to 
withhold planning permission.  It should be noticed that this situation and the planning policy 
context is no different to that when planning permission for a similar development was granted in 
2006.   
 
Car Parking and Vehicle Access 
 
Two car parking spaces are proposed for the two shops and six spaces for the five flats – although 
it must be noted that this layout (and the provision of a refuse/cycle store) is created at the 
expense of some existing car parking within the site and in total there would be a reduction by 2 
spaces across the site and other land within the Applicant’s control.   
 
However, within this town centre location this provision is considered acceptable – particularly as 
during two visits to the site by the Planning Officer car parking provision at the rear of the site has 
been considerably underused.   
 
With regard to highway access, Officers at Essex County Council have advised that the proposed 
bell-mouth entrance onto the High Street is not necessary for a development of this scale and 
accordingly a simple vehicle crossover will suffice.  
 

Page 67



Concern has been raised by a business operating from the rear of the site regarding access and 
turning facilities for larger vehicles.  The site is constrained and it is acknowledges that access and 
turning by larger vehicles will be difficult.  However, this is the situation at present and the proposal 
would actually slightly increase the width of the access road.  It is not considered that access to 
the rear of the site for larger vehicles would be worsened and it is not, therefore, considered that 
this issue would justify the withholding of planning permission.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the development is acceptable.  It is, therefore, 
recommended that planning permission be granted.   
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

5 3 . 9 m

The

1

5

2

Po l i c e  St a t i o n

S h e l t e r

1 to 6

H o u s e

PCs

B ans ons  C our t

C o tta g e
H e r m i ta g e

A s h t o n  H o u s e

Old Rectory

C e n t r a l

G ar age

Surgery The Rectory

1

16

Redbricks

27
9

House
Swan

to
 2

85

1 to 5

Station
Court

2

7
13

S u r g e r y

Tel

Dovecot

3

The

1
Bansons

1 6

House

Council Office

Bretton
Frank

B A N S O N S  W A Y

S H
A K

LE T O
N
S

S H A K L E T O N S

Water

Car Park

B A N S O N ' S  Y A R D

Sub Sta
El

***
EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

9 & 10 
Application Number: EPF/1433/12 & EPF/1434/12 
Site Name: Land adj to Central House,  

High Street, Ongar, CM5 6AA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 69



Report Item No: 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1434/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adj to   

Central House  
High Street 
Ongar  
Essex 
CM5 6AA 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

APPLICANT: D G Property Consultants  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building application for the demolition of 
existing outbuilding and erection of new building consisting of 
2 shops, and 5 flats. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=539620 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted. 
 

2 Samples of the types and details of colours of all the external finishes, including 
shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved detail. 
 

3 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, rooflights, 
eaves, verges, fascias, cills, structural openings and junctions with the existing 
building, by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, 
shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the commencement 
of any works. 
 

4 Prior to the undertaking of any works to demolish the existing building, a full 
photographic record of the building should be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of 
Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)) and since the recommendation is for approval 
contrary to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal 

Page 70



(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, 
Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The site is located adjacent to Chipping Ongar Conservation Area and Central House, a grade II 
listed early 19th century building. 
 
The application site contains a detached single storey outbuilding which is thought to have 
originally accommodated changing rooms for Central House, which was formerly a grammar 
school.  By its age and association, this building in curtilage listed.  The application site also 
includes the forecourt area to the front of the building including the vehicular access point onto the 
High Street and part of the rear parking area.  Two individual car parking spaces are also included 
within the site area.   
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks listed building consent for the demolition of the outbuilding. 
 
A concurrent planning application seeks planning permission for the replacement of the outbuilding 
with a two storey building with additional accommodation within the roof space.  The building 
would accommodate 2 shops (45.5m² and 44.8m² in floor area) and a 2 bed flat at ground floor 
level, 2 x 2 bed flats within the first floor and 2 x 2 bed flats within the roof space. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
An application (EPF/1433/12) seeks planning permission for the demolition of the listed building 
and construction of a replacement building and is presently under consideration. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
HC11 – Demolition of Listed Buildings 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Ongar Town Council. 
 
The following representation has been received: 
 
ONGAR TOWN COUNCIL.  Objection.  Ongar Town Council considers that the new building is 
unlikely to improve the setting of Central House or the special character of the Ongar conservation 
area.   
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues in this case are the impacts of the proposed development on the historic and 
architectural interest of the listed building.  
 
Impact on the Listed Building and the Conservation Area 
 
Both the EFDC Conservation Officer and the Senior Historic Buildings Advisor at Essex County 
Council have been consulted on this application.   
 

Page 71



They do not raise any objection to the loss of the curtilage listed building, concluding that ‘although 
it does have a historic association with Central House, it does not form an integral element of the 
listed building’s significance and its loss will not cause any notable harm’. 
 
Furthermore, they consider that the proposed building would have a traditional form which would 
appear sympathetic to both the listed building (Central House) and the consideration area.  They 
state ‘the proposed building will enhance the appearance of the streetscene by continuing the 
building line of this part of the street’.   
 
It is considered necessary to impose a planning condition requiring the recording of the outbuilding 
prior to its demolition, as a record for future reference.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the development is acceptable.  It is, therefore, 
recommended that listed building consent be granted.   
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



Report Item No: 11 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1714/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Orchard Villa 

Norton Heath 
High Ongar 
Ingatestone 
Essex 
CM4 0LQ 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Alan Barclay 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey summer house and deck (revised application to 
incorporate pitched roof and alterations to elevations). 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=541069 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The shingles, weatherboard and window frames as detailed on plan number 
AB/RPA/12/001 shall be timber, with finishes as stated in the application forms. 
 

2 Within four months of the date of this decision notice the proposed works and 
material changes as detailed on drawing number AB/RPA/12/001 shall be fully 
completed as stated.  
 

 
 
This item was deferred at the last meeting held on the 28/11/12 in order to allow members to 
visit the site.  The site visit is scheduled to take place on 15/12/12 and the report below is as 
first reported.  
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Orchard Villa is a Grade II listed cottage set in a small enclave of dwellings within the boundaries 
of the Metropolitan Green Belt. The adjacent property to the north is the Grade II listed Bright’s 
Cottage. These are traditional, vernacular 18th century cottages, within a picturesque rural setting. 
The garden area of the property is situated to the east of the dwelling and is separated from 
Orchard Villa by a high hedge.  
 

Page 73



Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is a retrospective application to retain a single storey summer house with a decking 
area in the garden area of the application site. The building has a floor area of approximately 4.0m 
x 3.1m. The current building has a flat roof and modern finish. This has previously been deemed 
inappropriate and as such an application for the retention of the summer house has been refused 
(EPF/2029/11). The reason for refusal was stated as follows;  
 
“The development by reason of its poor use of modern materials and detailing and flat roof design 
would appear out of place, forming no affinity with the listed buildings, Orchard Villa and Bright's 
Cottage. As such the development would fail to preserve or enhance the special character of these 
buildings. The proposal is therefore at odds with government guidance contained in Planning 
Policy Statement 5 (Planning for the Historic Environment) and contrary to Policy HC12 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations.” 
 
This proposal includes the retention of the building with the addition of a pitched roof with a shingle 
covering and a timber cladding. The deck area would be surrounded by a low set post and rail 
fence.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
There have been a number of applications at the site the most relevant and recent being; 
 
EPF/0955/00 - Two storey side extension, alterations to garage, and single storey rear extension. 
Refuse Permission - 18/12/2000. 
LB/EPF/0989/00 - Listed building consent for two storey side extension, alterations to garage and 
single storey rear extension. Refuse Permission – 18/12/00. 
EPF/2518/10 - Grade II listed building application for the retention of external soil pipes. Grant 
Permission – 15/03/11.  
EPF/2029/11 - Retrospective application for the retention of a single storey summer house and 
deck. Refuse Permission – 29/11/11. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings  
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties  
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt  
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
HC12 – Development Affecting the Setting of a Listed Building  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
(3 properties consulted – 1 reply received). 
 
BRIGHT’S COTTAGE: Objection. The close siting of this building in relation to our house is a 
gross invasion of privacy. We believe the applicant would have been aware that an application 
was necessary for planning permission. The site plan is totally misleading and shows the building 

Page 74



as a tiny structure in the corner of the property. The length of this shed is over 9.0m, over 50% of 
the boundary is abutted by a shed, and 60% of our dwelling. The structure will result in a loss of 
light to our living room and bedroom.  It will be level with the top of our bedroom window. This will 
affect light and privacy. We have kept our hedge higher this year in order to block views of this 
structure and it is usually 2 foot lower than at present. We are concerned the close proximity of the 
shed represents a fire risk. This area will be used for socialising which again will mean more noise 
and disturbance. The applicant also has a sodium lamp lit up until late in the evening which is 
proving to be a nuisance and illuminated rooms in our house. This is not the first retrospective 
application at this property. I trust we have made our case for, loss of privacy, light, noise and light 
pollution.  
 
PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. The modifications do nothing to overcome the principal objection 
that the location of the structure shows complete disregard for the impact on the neighbouring 
property. The lounge windows of Bright’s Cottage are only separated by a tall hedge and the 
potential for noise nuisance cannot be supported by the Parish Council. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are the impact of the proposal on the setting of the listed building, 
neighbour amenity and the Metropolitan Green Belt.  
 
Green Belt  
 
This proposal, as an ancillary outbuilding within the Metropolitan Green Belt, is deemed relatively 
modest and would have no material impact on openness.  
 
Listed Building  
 
A proposal to retain a summer house with decking area has been previously refused at the site 
with concerns about the setting of both listed buildings cited as the reason. The current application 
outlines the proposals to overcome this concern. The proposed use of weatherboard with a shingle 
roof can address the concern about the appearance of the current structure. Their suitability can 
be agreed by condition. The proposed position of the building is perhaps the best to limit impact on 
the listed buildings as it will be screened by the high hedge. The decking and low set post and rail 
fence raises no issues. Generally the building in its proposed state would preserve the setting of 
this pair of listed buildings and subject to suitable conditions it is deemed an acceptable 
appearance which overcomes previous concerns.  
 
Amenity  
 
The occupants of the neighbouring dwelling, Bright’s Cottage, have expressed some concern 
about the development and its impact on their amenity. The existing hedge provides a solid screen 
and there would be no material increase in loss of light to windows on the ground floor, even with 
the newly pitched roof above. The lounge in the neighbouring property is also served by a number 
of ground floor windows.  
 
The window at second floor level would suffer no serious loss of light as the built form would not 
extend as high as this opening. The roof of the structure would be visible from the upper floor 
window at Bright’s Cottage. However this would not result in a material loss of outlook from the 
window. Although there would be some visual impact it would not be highly detrimental to the living 
conditions of occupants of this dwelling.   
 
The neighbours are also concerned about noise from the neighbouring property due to the location 
of the summer house adjacent to windows on Bright’s Cottage. This is a slightly unconventional 
scenario in that the first floor window of Bright’s Cottage is side facing and overlooking the 

Page 75



neighbour’s private garden area. This scenario is not significantly different from outbuildings/patio 
areas at the rear of properties that fall outside the control of Local Planning Authorities. This is 
particularly the case in rural areas were boundaries can be less uniform than in more urban parts 
of the district.  The applicant is further restricted by the fact that the setting of the listed building 
must be accounted for, and the advice of Essex County Council’s Listed Building Advisor is that 
this is probably the best position for it. It is unfortunate that this is a retrospective application but it 
must be judged on its merits.  The existing hedge does provide a solid screen and there is then a 
gap from the hedge to the dwelling.  Therefore any loss of amenity is considered to be an 
acceptable level. It is not accepted that the use of the summerhouse and decked area would 
necessarily result in significantly more noise and disturbance than general domestic garden use 
would. 
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed amendments to the design of this summer house are deemed suitable to overcome 
previous concerns. Some impact on the amenities of adjacent residents of Bright’s Cottage is 
recognised. However it is considered that there are mitigating factors which reduce the impact to 
an acceptable level. It is therefore considered that the proposal is deemed acceptable and 
recommended for approval with conditions.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

Cottage

Orchard

The

Bright's

Villa

Forge

Villas

2

1

Prospect

Farm
Dovefields

T h e

1 The Old

2

The Haverings

H av er ings

School
House

FI NGR I T H HA LL LA NE

A  4 1 4

Ponds

Mill
Mound

LB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

11 
Application Number: EPF/1714/12 
Site Name: Orchard Villa, Norton Heath 

High Ongar, CM4 0LQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 77



Report Item No: 12 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1905/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 63 Weald Bridge Road 

North Weald  
Essex 
CM16 6ES 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Simpson 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Construction of a one bedroom annexe in rear garden. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542097 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The annexe hereby approved shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the 
existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied or sub-divided off as a unit 
separately from the dwelling known as 63 Weald Bridge Road. 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site forms one of a number of properties of similar design which make up a ribbon 
of development along Weald Bridge Road. The dwelling is detached and a chalet style bungalow. 
One of the characteristics of the area is that dwellings are served by relatively long rear gardens of 
approximately 50m. The rear of this garden is screened by vegetation and both side boundaries 
are demarcated by low set chain link fencing. A part overgrown accessway runs along the rear 
boundary of the site. The property is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt, the boundary of which 
abuts the rear of the site and a bridleway also passes close to the rear of the site.  
 

Page 78



Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is to construct a one bedroom annexe in the rear garden of the property. The floor 
area would measure 10.2m x 5.5m, an eaves height of 2.4m and a ridge height of 4.0m. The plans 
indicate that the building would have a brick and tile finish, however the application forms state a 
render finish. The building would be located towards the rear of the garden area. The application 
form indicates that the building would be used as ancillary accommodation for his wife’s mother.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1947/08 - Loft conversion and pitched roof to existing flat roofed single storey extension to 
provide first floor accommodation. (Revised application) . Grant Permission (With Conditions) – 
10/11/08.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings  
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties  
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
NORTH WEALD PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. Concern about visual impact on adjacent 
neighbours and represents backyard development. We are concerned that when we initially 
contacted the planning department we were told this was Green Belt land and as a result have had 
to amend our comments. We are also concerned that no planning notice was displayed and that 
only the adjacent neighbours were consulted. We feel that the construction of an annexe in a back 
garden should have been consulted on more widely.  
 
2 neighbours consulted – 1 reply received.  
 
65 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD: Objection. If this application is approved it would open the floodgates 
for garden developments along the road. There is no access to the rear and if one was created it 
would pass within 3 foot of my kitchen wall.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider relate to design, amenity and the comments of consultees.  
 
Amenity   
 
The Parish Council have raised concern that consultation for this proposal was not wider and that 
a site notice was not displayed. Both neighbours of the development were sent consultation letters 
and as this proposal is a “Householder” application this is the normal practice. Wider consultation 
and site notices are reserved for applications which would be of wider concern. It was not 
considered that the construction of a building in the rear garden of a property is one such 
development.  
 

Page 79



The proposed annexe would be located towards the bottom of the residential garden of the 
dwelling. Both neighbouring properties have similarly deep gardens and as such the building 
would be located some distance from the main dwellings on adjoining plots. It is not readily 
apparent that this proposal could impact on adjacent neighbour’s amenity. This is because the use 
of the land would not change and it is possible to use existing ancillary buildings for residential 
purposes under Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 without the need for 
consent. The difference here is that the building is being constructed for ancillary residential use, 
and the height limitations of Class E also require an application in this instance. However, having 
regard to the depth of plots, relative to the position of the proposed building, it is considered there 
would be no undue impact on amenity. The Parish Council has referred to the visual impact on 
neighbours. This involves a judgement of such things as scale, siting, massing, height, orientation 
and roof line. However having regard to the size of plots and the distance to the dwellings on 
adjoining plots it is not considered that this proposal would trigger excessive impact on any of 
these points.  
 
Design  
 
The design of the building is acceptable. There is a discrepancy between the plans and the 
application forms with regards to the finish of the walls. However either proposed materials would 
not appear out of place if used to finish the outbuilding. This can be agreed by condition. The 
height of the building is reasonable, single storey with a conventional pitched roof above, and it 
would not appear excessively prominent from the surrounding area. The Parish Council has made 
reference to the fact that this is a “backyard” development. This is a reference to Government 
changes to planning policy which restrict the development of dwellings on backland sites. However 
the application forms indicate that this is an ancillary building with a clear tie provided by the fact 
that a relative will live in the building. There are no plans to create a separate planning unit; and 
case law recognises that a “Granny Annexe” can be capable of independent living and still remain 
as an adjunct to the main house (Uttlesford D.C v S.O.S and White 4/3/91). Access to the building 
is achieved by the same means as to the main house. A condition ensuring the building is not 
separated or sold off is however deemed necessary.  
 
Parish Council Green Belt comments 
 
The Parish Council also state that they had initially been informed by the Planning Department that 
the site was within the Green Belt. No further details are available but revised comments were 
received and no prejudice has occurred.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed development is deemed acceptable and is recommended for approval subject to the 
conditions recommended. The comments of neighbours and the Parish Council are noted but this 
does not change the recommendation to grant consent in this instance, given the recommended 
conditions.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 80



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

6 9

7 1

82

8 5

70

68

6 7

66

68a

4 7

5 7

1 0

16

W
E A

L D
 B

R I
D G

E  
R O

A D Pond

P a t h  ( u m )

FB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

12 
Application Number: EPF/1905/12 
Site Name: 63 Weald Bridge Road, North Weald  

CM16 6ES 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 81



Report Item No: 13 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1924/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 261 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BT 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Mr G DiPiazza  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion of office space (disused) into 3 no. self contained 
flats and alterations to existing bedsits into a single self 
contained flat. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542180 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 08003.SP, 08003.002 Rev: P1, 08003.003 Rev: P1, 
08003.004 Rev: P1 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Grade II listed building with an 18th century or earlier historic shop front, which is considered 
extremely important to the building, and 19th century and later extensions to the rear. The site is 
located within the key frontage of Epping Town Centre and accessed by way of an undercroft 
pedestrian walkway to the side of the unit. Vehicle access is also available from Buttercross Lane. 
The property contains a restaurant at the ground floor and a mix of a three bed bedsit and offices 
on the first floor. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought to convert the existing offices into three self contained flats consisting of 1 
no. two bed, 1 no. one bed and 1 no. studio flat, and to alter the existing bedsit into 1. no. two bed 
flat. The three new flats towards the rear of the site would be served by a shared entrance whilst 

Page 82



the converted bedsit would benefit from its own separate entrance. There would be no alterations 
to the ground floor and no extensions to the existing building. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1924/00 - External fire escape staircase and change of use of first floor to offices and bedsits 
– approved/conditions 14/03/01 
EPF/1652/04 - Erection of first and second floor rear extension to provide 4 no. two bedroom 
apartments – refused 01/11/04 
EPF/0198/05 - Erection of first floor extension with rooms in roof to provide 3 no. flats (revised 
application) – refused 22/06/05 
EPF/1265/05 - Erection of first floor extension with rooms in roof to provide 3 no. flats (revised 
application) – approved/conditions 14/09/05 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP7 – Urban form and quality 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
E4A – Protection of employment sites 
HC6 – Character and appearance and setting of conservation areas 
HC7 – Development within conservation areas 
HC13 – Change of use of listed buildings 
TC1 – Town centre hierarchy  
TC3 – Town centre function 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
The above policies form part of the Council’s 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
8 Neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 28/10/12 in relation 
to LB/EPF/1938/12. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Object. Committee believes that retention of employment premises within the 
town centre should remain a priority over housing. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be addressed in this case are the principle of the development in this location, 
whether the change of use would be detrimental to the listed building and conservation area, and 
whether there would be any harmful impact on the amenities of surrounding or future occupiers. 
 
Principle of development: 
 
Local Plan policy TC3 states that, in town centres, the Council will “permit residential 
accommodation in appropriate locations but not at ground floor level”, and the NPPF states that 

Page 83



LPA’s should “recognise that residential development can play an important role in ensuring the 
vitality of centres and set out policies to encourage residential development on appropriate sites”. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, Local Plan policy E4A states: 
 
Sites currently or last in use for employment but outside the defined employment areas will 
be safeguarded from redevelopment or change of use to other land-uses. Housing on 
redundant employment land will be regarded favourably but any changes to this or other 
land uses will only be permitted in circumstances where it has been shown by an 
independent appraisal that either: 

(i) the site is particularly poorly located in relation to housing or access by 
sustainable means; or 

(ii) there are material conflicts with adjoining land uses (e.g. by reason of noise, 
disturbance, traffic, environmental and amenity issues); or 

(iii) existing premises are unsuitable in relation to the operational requirements of 
modern business; or 

(iv) there is a demonstrable lack of market demand for employment use over a long 
period that is likely to persist during the plan period; 

and there are very significant development or infrastructure constraints, making the site 
unsuitable or uneconomic to redevelop for employment purposes. 
 
The application site is located within Epping town centre with good access to shops, services and 
public transport links, and is therefore considered to be a sustainable location for residential 
development. Furthermore, given that the current employment use is for offices, it is not 
considered that this would materially conflict with adjoining land uses. As such, points (i) and (ii) of 
policy E4A cannot be argued in this instance. 
 
The applicant submitted a letter stating that: 
 

“We confirm that the offices at the above mentioned property were vacated by the previous 
tenant over 12 months ago. 

 
Since that period, we have actively marketed the property. We have not received any 
interest to occupy the property as offices and to date, the offices remain vacant. 

 
Demand for offices at this property has been non-existent”. 

 
Further to this letter, an email from ‘Partners Employment Lawyers’ has also been submitted 
stating that: 
 

“I confirm I was a tenant at [261a] High Street for some years. We had tried for over a year 
to assign the premises with two separate agents including Lloyds Commercial Agents. We 
also approached companies directly without success. We had two viewings over that 
period but no interest at all. In the end we had no choice but to surrender the lease. 

 
I can therefore confirm there is a lack of demand and that numerous attempts have been 
made to rent or assign the premises”. 

 
Furthermore, the site is still being advertised and continues to have a large sign up advertising ‘1st 
Floor Office To Let’. Due to the above, it is considered that the property has been adequately 
advertised for employment purposes for a sufficient period without interest and therefore there is a 
lack of market demand for these premises. 
 
Whilst the application site is located within a sustainable location, and the Town Council considers 
that employment use should remain a priority over additional housing, the application site is a 

Page 84



listed building and as such any extensive alterations or redevelopment to provide up-to-date, 
modern facilities would likely be deemed unacceptable. Therefore, this site is considered to be 
severely restricted in terms of retaining suitable employment use. As the residential use of this site 
can be achieved through minimal internal and no external alterations, this is considered to be a 
preferable and more feasible use of this listed building and would comply with policy E4A (iii) and 
(iv). 
 
Planning consent was previously granted for a new first floor extension (with habitable space 
within the roof space) to the rear of the application site, which incorporated three new residential 
flats. This consent shows that the principle of additional residential use on this site is considered 
acceptable. 
 
Conservation issues: 
 
This Grade II listed building comprises an 18th century or earlier frontage building with a 19th 
century rear extension, added in the Edwardian period and further extended in 1969. Whilst the 
frontage building contains the greatest historic significance, the 19th and early 20th century 
extensions do also contain a degree of significance with internal features of interest, including 
some raised and fielded panelled doors and Edwardian fireplaces. 
 
No significant change is proposed within the frontage building, as this is simply being converted 
from a three bed bedsit to a two bed flat (with one previous bedsit being changed to a 
kitchen/lounge). The changes to the rear section of the building are minimal, as the majority of 
existing walls and divisions are to be retained. The alterations to the corridor to create a bathroom 
and moved doorways are considered reasonable, subject to two of the more historic doors being 
reused in the new layout. 
 
The proposed layout appears to allow fire and sound regulations to be accommodated without loss 
of features, but any additional works must be sensitively executed and any new doors should be of 
sympathetic design. However it is not considered that the proposed conversion would 
detrimentally impact on the historic features or character of either the Grade II listed building or the 
wider conservation area. 
 
Amenity concerns: 
 
The site is surrounded by other commercial and residential first floor units and only overlooks rear 
yard areas. As such there would be no loss of amenity to any sensitive neighbours. 
 
The proposal does not provide any private or communal amenity space for future occupants of the 
flats, however this is often not required in town centre locations such as this. There is an existing 
yard area serving the entire unit, which provides access and bin storage space, however the 
application form states that there are no parking spaces existing or proposed, so it is assumed that 
this is unavailable for parking provision. However, once again, the vehicle parking standards can 
be reduced within town centre locations, and in this particular instance (due to the limited site area 
and extremely sustainable location) it is considered that a zero parking scheme would be 
acceptable. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
As the existing office has been marketed for a period of at least 12 months (and is continuing to be 
advertised) without any interest, it is considered that there is no market demand for these 
premises, which is severely restricted in its potential to be enhanced, modernised or redeveloped. 
The proposed residential use within this first floor can be achieved without harming the historic 
fabric or character of the listed building or wider conservation area, and would be in line with both 
National guidance and Local Plan policies. Whilst the proposed flats would not be served by any 

Page 85



amenity space or off-street parking it is considered that, due to the location and limitations of the 
site, the lack of this would be considered acceptable in this instance. Members should be aware 
that a previous enforcement notice against the change of use of a first floor office to a flat at no. 53 
High Street, Epping was quashed on appeal in 2010 because there was evidence of marketing 
and lack of interest in office use. 
 
Given the proposal complies with the relevant Local Plan policies, the application is recommended 
for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 86



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

108.2m

107.6m107.6m

107.6m

108.2m

107.6m

236

Hem nall M ews

236

Hem nall M ews

2 9
7

2 9
7

303 305 3 0
7

303 305 3 0
7

S i m
o n1  t
o  8

2 8
3

2 8 7

2 8 9

C a
m p

i o n
C o
u r t

1  t
o  8

2 8 7

2 8 9

Surgery

29
3

2 9 1 P H
29
3Pos t O ffic e

2 8
12 7
9

2 7
7

1

House
LSP

Bk

4
5

5a

7

1 5

C a
m p

i o n

P H

S i m
o n

C o
u r t

M agist rat es'Court

M agist rat es'Court

1 5

P o lS ta

230

226

222
224

2 6
5

SortingOffice

212

218

2

214
210

216

208

2a

PH

204

198

196
2 5
7

2 5
9

t o
2 2
9

2 1
9

221 223

2 1
7

2 2
5

2 3
1

2 3
5

PC

224b 224a

Bank

2 3
9 t o

2 5
3

2 5
5

1 9
5

7 to 48

2

2a

Surgery

Bk

2 7
9

2 7
1

2 7
5

2 7
1

2 7
5

2 8
1

2 9 1

2 8
3

2 7
7

224a

222

226

224

224b

2 6
7

2 6
9

P o lS ta

2302 6
5

2 6
7

2 6
9

SortingOffice

Pos t O ffic e1

House
LSP

214

218

210

216
212

208

2 5
7

2 5
9

2 5
5

Bank

198

196

PH

204

2 2
9

2 3
1

2 3
5

t o 2 3
9 t o

2 5
3

4
5

5a

7

PC

2 1
9

221 223

2 1
7

2 2
5

7 to 48

T h e

C ot t a
geT h e

M i l l  H
o u s e

T h e

T h e

C ot t a
ge

M i l l  H
o u s e

1 9
5

BU T T E RCRO S S  LAN E

T H E  D
R U M M O N D S

H E
M
N A

L L

S T
R E

E T

H I
G H

S T
R E

E T

STA R  LA NE

T H E  D
R U M M O N D S

H E
M
N A

L L

S T
R E

E T

H I
G H

S T
R E

E T

STA R  LA NE

BU T T E RCRO S S  LAN E

M o
n u
m e

n t

LB

T C
B s

El Sub StaEl Sub Sta

LB

El
Sub Sta

El
Sub Sta

Car Park

M o
n u
m e

n t

Car Park

T C
B s

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

13 & 14 
Application Number: EPF/1924/2 & EPF/1938/12 
Site Name: 261 High Street, Epping,  

CM16 4BT 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 87



Report Item No: 14 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1938/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 261 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BT 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Mr G DiPiazza  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building application for the conversion of office 
space (disused) into 3 no. self contained flats and alterations 
to existing bedsits into a single self contained flat. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542243 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 08003.SP, 08003.002 Rev: P1, 08003.003 Rev: P1, 
08003.004 Rev: P1 
 

3 The doors to be removed to create the new layout of Flat 1, as shown on drawing 
No. 08003.004 Rev: P1, shall be reused within Flat 1 and retained as such 
thereafter. 
 

4 Any new doors or additional works required to address Building Regulations shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of these works taking place. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Grade II listed building with an 18th century or earlier historic shop front, which is considered 
extremely important to the building, and 19th century and later extensions to the rear. The site is 
located within the key frontage of Epping Town Centre and accessed by way of an undercroft 

Page 88



pedestrian walkway to the side of the unit. Vehicle access is also available from Buttercross Lane. 
The property contains a restaurant at the ground floor and a mix of a three-bed bedsit and offices 
on the first floor. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Grade II listed building consent is being sought to convert the existing offices into three self 
contained flats consisting of 1 no. two bed, 1 no. one bed and 1 no. studio flat, and to alter the 
existing bedsit into 1. no. two bed flat. The three new flats towards the rear of the site would be 
served by a shared entrance whilst the converted bedsit would benefit from its own separate 
entrance. There would be no alterations to the ground floor and no extensions to the existing 
building. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
LB/EPF/1944/00 – Grade II listed building application for an external fire escape staircase and 
change of use of first floor to offices and bedsits – approved/conditions 14/03/01 
LB/EPF/1266/05 – Grade II listed building application for the erection of first floor extension with 
rooms in roof to provide 3 no. flats (revised application) – approved/conditions 23/09/05 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
HC6 – Character and appearance and setting of conservation areas 
HC7 – Development within conservation areas 
HC13 – Change of use of listed buildings 
 
The above policies form part of the Council’s 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
A Site Notice was displayed on 28/10/12. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Object. Committee believes that retention of employment premises within the 
town centre should remain a priority over housing. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be addressed in this case are whether the change of use would be detrimental 
to the listed building and conservation area. 
 
This Grade II listed building comprises an 18th century or earlier frontage building with a 19th 
century rear extension, added in the Edwardian period and further extended by 1969. Whilst the 
frontage building contains the greatest historic significance, the 19th and early 20th century 
extensions do also contain a degree of significance with internal features of interest, including 
some raised and fielded panelled doors and Edwardian fireplaces. 
 
No significant change is proposed within the frontage building, as this is simply being converted 
from a three bed bedsit to a two bed flat (with one previous bedsit being changed to a 
kitchen/lounge). The changes to the rear section of the building are minimal, as the majority of 
existing walls and divisions are to be retained. The alterations to the corridor to create a bathroom 

Page 89



and moved doorways are considered reasonable, subject to two of the more historic doors being 
reused in the new layout. This can be controlled by way of a condition. 
 
The proposed layout appears to allow fire and sound regulations to be accommodated without loss 
of features, but any additional works must be sensitively executed and any new doors should be of 
sympathetic design. Subject to the imposition of a condition requiring this, it is not considered that 
the proposed conversion would detrimentally impact on the historic features or character of either 
the Grade II listed building or the wider conservation area. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed residential use within this first floor can be achieved without harming the historic 
fabric or character of the listed building or wider conservation area, subject to conditions, and 
therefore would be in line with both National guidance and Local Plan policies. As such, the 
proposal complies with the relevant Local Plan policies and the application is recommended for 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 90


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 12-13

	3 MINUTES
	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	East 19 Dec 2012


